
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
 

Wednesday, October 25, 2017 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. In Closed Session Under Government Code § 54956.9(d), CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL 
COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

 Number of Cases: 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00 PM 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

PRESENTATIONS 

• Peninsula Reflections Dementia Awareness  

• San Mateo County CalFresh Program  

• SMC Alert System Proclamation 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 5, 2017 Special Meeting. 

3. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 11, 2017 Regular Meeting. 

NEW BUSINESS 

4. TOWN HALL PROJECT – AMENDMENT V CONSULTING SERVICES FOR FF&E  

Consider: Motion to Adopt Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a 
Fifth Amendment to the Agreement for Architectural Services with Ratcliff Architects to Develop 
Plans and Specifications for the Procurement of Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment for the Town 
Hall Renovation Project. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

STUDY SESSION 

5. TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX 

6. BUSINESS REGISTRATION FEE 

These items are for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting. 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       

City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


1. In Closed Session Under Government Code § 54956.9(d), CONFERENCE WITH
LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Number of Cases: 1

These items are for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting. 

Item #1





Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, October 5, 2017 

6:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro called the Special Meeting of the City Council to order at 6:07 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Council 
Members Joanne F. del Rosario, John Irish Goodwin and Diana Colvin were all present 

Staff Present – Interim City Manager William C. Norton, Administrative Services Director 
Brian Dossey, Contract Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, Contract Assistant Engineer 
Mahan Bozorginia, and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Fisicaro asked if there were any changes to the agenda. None were requested. The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Council Member del Rosario moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  
Diana Colvin  

5 0 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. NOTICE OF AWARD – TOWN HALL PROJECT – INFILL & SITEWORK

Contract Director of Public Works Brad Donohue presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro
opened the public comment period at 6:15 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak,
she closed the public comment. Council discussion followed.

Action: Mayor Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Waiving Any Irregularities in the Bid of
and Awarding and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Contract for the
Town Hall Addition and Renovation Project, Phase IV Infill & Sitework with BHM
Construction, Inc.; the motion was seconded by Council Member Colvin and carried by the
following vote:

Item #2



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

 
ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY 

Mayor Fisicaro adjourned the meeting at 6:29 p.m. in honor of everyone impacted by the 
tragedy in Las Vegas, Ginny Anderlini, longtime community member; Carolyn Livengood, 
reporter, community activist and tireless volunteer; and Chris Pallas, former San Bruno 
Council Member and School Board Member.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
 



Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, October 11, 2017 

7:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:20 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Council 
Members Joanne F. del Rosario, John Irish Goodwin and Diana Colvin were all present 

Staff Present – Interim City Manager William C. Norton, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, 
Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey, Police Chief Kirk Stratton, Contract Director of 
Public Works Brad Donohue, Contract City Planner Michael Laughlin, and City Clerk Caitlin 
Corley were in attendance.  

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Mayor Fisicaro stated, “No action was taken at tonight’s closed session meeting.” 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Fisicaro asked if there were any changed to the agenda. None were requested. The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Council Member del Rosario moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  
Diana Colvin  

5 0 

PRESENTATION 

Interim City Manager Bill Norton introduced new Contract Finance Director Brian Moura. 

Police Chief Kirk Stratton introduced and swore in new Police Officer Anthony McKenna. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Fisicaro opened the public comment period at 7:32 p.m. residents Shirley Stone, Pat 
Hatfield and Jim Letcavage expressed concern about the new parking permit process.  

Item #3



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the September 27, 2017 Regular Meeting.  

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for September 2017.  

4. Motion to Accept Informational Report on Recreation Department Programs, Activities, 
Events, and Trips for the Third Quarter of 2017.  

5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Designating Certain Products, Brands or Services Pursuant to 
Public Contract Code Section 3400.  

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending Subchapter 3.08 and Adding Subchapter 3.11 to the 
Colma Administrative Code, Relating to Email and Other Electronic Communications and the 
Public Records Act.  

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account 
(RMRA) Project List and Amending Gas Tax Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2017-2018. 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #2 through 
7; the motion was seconded by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

8. SERRAMONTE BOULEVARD AND COLLINS MASTER PLAN 

Contract City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro opened the 
public comment period at 7:53 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed 
the public comment. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Vice Mayor Gonzalez moved to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to 
Execute a Contract with Dyett and Bhatia in the Amount of $336,518 for Preparation of the 
Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan; the motion was seconded by Council 
Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

 



Page 3 of 3 

STUDY SESSION 

9. RESERVE POLICE OFFICER PROGRAM

Police Chief Kirk Stratton presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro opened the public
comment period at 8:26 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the
public comment. Council discussion followed.

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular City Council Meetings will be on Wednesday, October 25, 2017 at 7:00 
p.m. and Wednesday, November 8, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

REPORTS 

Helen Fisicaro 
Peninsula Italian American Social Club Columbus Day Event, 10/6/17 
Black Bear Diner Ribbon Cutting, 10/10/17 
Daly City Youth Wall Breaking Event, 10/11/17 

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez 
Black Bear Diner Ribbon Cutting, 10/10/17 

Joanne F. del Rosario 
Black Bear Diner Ribbon Cutting, 10/10/17 

Interim City Manager Bill Norton reminded everyone that Republic Services will be holding a 
Free Recycling and Compost Giveaway Event on Saturday, October 14, 2017.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Fisicaro adjourned the meeting at 9:03 p.m. in honor of Marge Barajas, former 
Colma resident

Respectfully submitted,

Caitlin Corley 





Staff Report – Ratcliff Contract Amendment  Page 1 of 3 
10/18/17 

STAFF REPORT

TO: 

FROM: 

VIA:  

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Brian Dossey, Administrative Services Director 

Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

Mahan Bozorginia, Project Manager  

William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

October 25, 2017 

Town Hall Project - Amendment V Consulting Services for FF&E

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES WITH 
RATCLIFF ARCHITECTS TO DEVELOP PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE 
PROCUREMENT OF FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT FOR THE TOWN HALL 
RENOVATION PROJECT.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed Fifth Amendment would commission Ratcliff Architects to take their schematic 
design (A simple furniture space plan), and produce a comprehensive plan and specification 
defining characteristics such as furniture type and size, wood and fabric type, colors, 
ergonomics, ADA requirements, and cost estimates.  Ratcliff’s obligation from previous 
agreements was to deliver a conceptual design defining the furniture layout in the various 
offices, conference room and public areas. The detailed work in defining furniture 
characteristics described above was never part of the original scope of services under the 
Agreement for Architectural Services as amended by the First, Second, Third and Fourth 
Amendments. The proposed Fifth Amendment will complete the final phase of interior design 
work and allow Staff to issue a solicitation for a contractor who will procure and install the 
selected furniture, fixtures and equipment. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed not-to-exceed fee from Ratcliff Architects for furniture, fixtures and equipment 
design and construction administration services (“FF&E Services”) is $38,900.  The fee covers 
the completion of design development and construction administration services regarding the 

Item #4



Staff Report – Ratcliff Contract Amendment  Page 2 of 3 
10/18/17 

delivery of final construction documents for going to bid. The proposed costs for these services 
is within the Town Hall Renovation Project’s overall budget. If the Fifth Amendment is 
approved, it would increase the total contract amount under the Agreement for Architectural 
Services to $1,683,365.00.  

BACKGROUND 

Ratcliff was required to survey existing facility conditions and interview with Staff on their 
various needs regarding office furniture and needed equipment pursuant to the original scope 
of services under the Agreement for Architectural Services.  The proposed Fifth Amendment 
would commission Ratcliff to utilize the information and data that was obtained during this 
previous step along with City selected finishes and color schemes, in order to create an 
inventory of what furniture and equipment is needed for the various offices and conference 
rooms, City Council Chambers, public areas and large file and record storage areas.   

The basis of design for furniture, fixtures and equipment is typically a separate design process. 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment design is typically performed by interior design specialists 
who are familiar with current industry products and availability.  Ratcliff has a division within 
their firm that provides interior design and construction administration services.  The reason 
these services are not part of the original scope of services under the Agreement for 
Architectural Services is because the parties did not at that time generally have a clear 
understanding of the specific needs and design features of the project.  Furniture, fixtures and 
equipment design services are typically procured at a later stage of the project. 

ANALYSIS 

In addition to Ratcliff, Staff contacted three other local design firms that have the capability of 
producing facility space planning, plans and specifications. The other firms that were contacted 
for providing such services were: RMA Studio, Brereton Architects and Martinkovic Milford 
Architects.  All three were given the schematic space plan and asked to provide pricing for the 
furniture, fixtures and equipment basis of design, associated construction administration 
services and other minor services related to the procurement and installation of the furniture, 
fixtures and equipment .  None of the above firms responded to the request for pricing.     

Ratcliff’s proposal for a furniture, fixtures and equipment basis of design consists of two parts; 
design development and construction documents.  The design development will comprise of 
collaboration between Ratcliff and Staff.  Ratcliff will prepare and submit a conceptual design 
for Staff review and decision/direction.  Ratcliff will also provide estimating services for products 
being proposed.  

The construction documents will be an expansion of the schematic design previously provided. 
Ratcliff will take the schematic plan and provide more detailed drawings and elevations along 
with specifications so that the Town can obtain accurate pricing from interested bidders.  

Council Adopted Values 

Approval of the Fifth Amendment is the responsible action, Staff solicited proposals from three 
other firms but received no response.  Given that Ratcliff produced the initial schematic design 



Staff Report – Ratcliff Contract Amendment  Page 3 of 3 
10/18/17 

and is most familiar with the project and its various finishes and color selections, Ratcliff is well 
suited to perform the furniture, fixtures and equipment basis of design services. This 
amendment will not require an increase of the budget for the Town Hall project.  

Alternatives 

While the City Council could reject the Fifth Amendment, doing so is not recommended.  Since 
other proposals were solicited and none were submitted, rejecting the Fifth Amendment would 
only delay the Town Hall Renovation Project further as Staff proceeds to solicit proposals from 
additional firms.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends City Council approve the Resolution approving and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute the Fifth Amendment to the Agreement for Architectural Services.  This will 
allow Staff to begin collaboration with Ratcliff on the furniture, fixtures and equipment basis of 
design.  Upon completion and preparation of construction documents by Ratcliff, Staff will 
return to the City Council for approval of the solicitation for the Town Hall Renovation Project - 
Furniture, Fixture and Equipment Package.  

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution 
B. Fifth Amendment to Agreement for Architectural Services 

(a) Ratcliff Proposal 
C. FF&E Schematic Design 





Res. 2017-##, Town Hall Renovation Project - Fifth Amendment to Agreement for Architectural Services Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-____ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 
A FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES WITH 

RATCLIFF ARCHITECTS TO DEVELOP PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE 
PROCUREMENT OF FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT FOR THE TOWN HALL 

RENOVATION PROJECT  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) On or about February 26, 2014, the Town and Ratcliff Architects (“Ratcliff”) entered into
an Agreement for Architectural Services (the “Agreement”), for the design of the Colma Town 
Hall Renovation project (the “Project”).   

(b) The Agreement permits the Town and Ratcliff to amend the terms and conditions of the 
Agreement upon mutual written agreement of the parties. 

(c) On or about March 11, 2015, the Town and Ratcliff entered into a First Amendment to the 
Agreement (“First Amendment”) whereby the fee and scope of work for completion of the Phase 
II design services for the Project was agreed upon by the parties. 

(d) On or about July 27, 2016, the Town and Ratcliff entered into a Second Amendment to 
the Agreement (“Second Amendment”) to address additional costs associated with the design 
services for Phase II of the Project. 

(e) On or about October 31, 2016, the Town and Ratcliff entered into a Third Amendment to 
the Agreement (“Third Amendment”) to compensate Ratcliff for certain additional tasks to 
complete the Phase II design services as agreed to between the parties. 

(f) On or about May 23, 2017, The Town and Ratcliff entered into a Fourth Amendment to 
the Agreement (“Fourth Amendment”) to perform additional tasks to complete: (1) the Phase II 
construction administration services on the Project; and (2) value engineering and conforming 
plans. 

(g) The Town and Ratcliff now desire to enter into a Fifth Amendment to the Agreement 
(“Fifth Amendment”) to perform additional tasks related to furniture, fixtures and equipment basis 
of design (“FF&E Services”). 

2. Finding.

(a) The City Council finds that Ratcliff has demonstrated it possesses the qualifications and
experience necessary to perform the FF&E Services and at a fair and reasonable price to the 
Town. 

/ 

/ 

Attachment A



Res. 2017-##, Town Hall Renovation Project - Fifth Amendment to Agreement for Architectural Services Page 2 of 2 

3. Order 

(a) The Fifth Amendment adding FF&E Services to the scope of services under the Agreement 
is hereby approved in the not-to-exceed amount of $38,900. 

(b) The City Manager is authorized to execute the Fifth Amendment on behalf of the Town, 
with such minor technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager and 
the City Attorney. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-___ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on October 25, 2017 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel Gonzalez        

Joanne del Rosario       

Diana Colvin      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



- 1 - 
25977.00100\30241396.1

FIFTH AMENDMENT TO 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

THIS FIFTH AMENDMENT (“Fifth Amendment”) is made entered into this ______ 
day of _____________, 2017, by and between the TOWN OF COLMA, a municipal 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of California with its principal place of 
business at 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA 94014 (“Town”) and RATCLIFF 
ARCHITECTS with its principal place of business at 5856 Doyle Street, Emeryville, CA 94608 
(“Architect”).  Town and Architect are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and 
collectively as “Parties” in this Fifth Amendment. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on or about February 26, 2014, the Town and Architect entered into an 
Agreement for Architectural Services (the “Agreement”), for the design of the Colma Town Hall 
Renovation project (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement permits the Town and Architect to amend the terms and 
conditions of the Agreement upon mutual written agreement of the parties; and  

WHEREAS, on or about March 11, 2015, the Town and Architect entered into a First 
Amendment to the Agreement (“First Amendment”) whereby the fee and scope of work for 
completion of the Phase II design services was agreed upon by the Parties; and  

WHEREAS, on or about July 27, 2016, the Town and Architect entered into a Second 
Amendment to the Agreement (“Second Amendment”) to address additional costs associated 
with the design services for Phase II of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, on or about October 31, 2016, the Town and Architect entered into a Third 
Amendment to the Agreement (“Third Amendment”) to compensate Architect for certain 
additional tasks to complete the Phase II design services as agreed to between the Parties; and 

WHEREAS, on or about May 23, 2017, The Town and Architect entered into a Fourth 
Amendment to the Agreement (“Fourth Amendment”) to perform additional tasks to complete: 
(1) the Phase II construction administration services on the Project; and (2) value engineering 
and conforming plans; and 

WHEREAS, Town has requested Architect to perform additional tasks related to 
furniture, fixtures and equipment basis of design (“FF&E Basis of Design”), which shall include: 
(1) design development and (2) generation of construction documents(“Additional Services”);  

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in good and valuable consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants contained herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties hereto agree as follows: 

Attachment B



- 2 - 
25977.00100\30241396.1  

 
1. Amendment Terms.   

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 

a. Additional Services.  Town acknowledges Architect must complete certain 
Additional Services in order to complete the FF&E Basis of Design.  Such  
Additional Services are described in Attachment “A”, attached to this 
Fifth Amendment and incorporated herein by this reference 

b. Architect’s Fee for Additional Services.  In accordance with Sections 3.8 
and 3.10 of the Agreement, Town and Architect agree that Architect will 
perform the Additional Services on a time and materials basis for a not to 
exceed fee of $38,900 (“Additional Services Fee”), as further described 
and set forth in Attachment “A”.  Architect shall not be entitled to any 
additional compensation except as explicitly authorized by a written 
agreement between the Parties.   

c. Invoicing for Additional Services.  In accordance with Section 3.10.4 of 
the Agreement, Architect shall submit itemized invoices on a monthly 
basis which indicate with specificity the Additional Services performed, 
percentage or portion of Additional Services completed, method of 
computing the amount payable, payments previously made against the 
Additional Services Fee, and the amount to be paid.  Architect’s failure to 
invoice Town for tasks rendered more than sixty (60) days after 
performance of the task and to otherwise comply with the invoicing 
requirements set forth herein shall constitute cause for Town to refuse 
payment and shall be deemed a waiver by Architect of its right to pursue 
further payment or make a claim against Town for the unpaid amounts 
associated with said tasks. 

d. Over Budget.  The Town’s budget for construction services related to the 
FF&E Basis of Design is $260,000 (“FF&E Budget”).  If the lowest 
responsible bidder submits a responsive bid that exceeds the FF&E Budget 
by more than ten percent (10%), Town may request Architect to amend, at 
Architect’s sole cost and expense, the plans, drawings and specifications 
associated with the FF&E Basis of Design in order to rebid the 
construction contract.  All revisions necessary to bring the lowest 
responsible bidder’s responsive bid within the FF&E Budget , including 
any omissions, deferrals or alternates, shall be made in consultation with, 
and subject to the approval of, the Town. 

2. Effective Date. This Fifth Amendment shall only be effective upon the execution 
by both the Town and Architect.   



- 3 - 
25977.00100\30241396.1  

3. Counterparts. This Fifth Amendment may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together 
shall constitute one and the same instrument.   

4. Continuing Effect. This Fifth Amendment shall affect only the items specifically 
set forth herein, and all other terms and conditions of the Agreement, as amended 
by the First, Second, Third and Fourth Amendments, shall remain in full force and 
effect.   

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have, by their duly authorized 
representatives, executed this Fifth Amendment to the Agreement for Architectural Services, as 
of the month, day and year first above written. 
 
TOWN OF COLMA     RATCLIFF ARCHITECTS 
 
By:       By:       

William C. Norton,  
Interim City Manager    Title:       
 

Printed Name:      
 
 
 

Attest: _________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
  



 
  Attachment “A” - Page 1 of 1 
  
25977.00100\30241396.1  

ATTACHMENT “A” 
FF&E BASIS OF DESIGN ADDITIONAL SERVICES/RATE SCHEDULE 

(DATED OCTOBER 12, 2017) 



October 12, 2017 

Mr. Mahan Bozorginia 
Town of Colma 
1188 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 

Re:  Furniture 
Project #: 34003.18 

Dear Mahan, 

We are pleased to present our proposal for architectural services for the selection, layout, procurement and 
installation of the furnishing for the Colma Town Hall project. Ratcliff will prepare documentation for 
confirmation of the furniture type, design and layout as illustrated in the Schematic Design. Drawings and 
specifications will be prepared to document the selection, finishes, color and quality for the procurement of the 
furnishings. Our understanding is that the Town of Colma will take responsibility for Construction 
Administration. 

The following description outlines the tasks and deliverables at each phase: 

Design Development 

x Collaborate with vendors(s) to confirm contracts for discounted pricing
x Email furniture plans to client to confirm type, performance, finishes and estimated pricing. Review will

be completed internally by Town of Colma.
x Updated Power Point presentation to illustrate furniture type and finishes
x Meeting (1) Town of Colma for approval of DD (Formal presentation at Council Meeting)

Construction Documents 

x Prepare detailed plans and specifications suitable for pricing and procurement
x Review pricing quotations; annotate required revisions and corrections
x Review RFP document prepared by the Town of Colma

Ratcliff Fees Summary 
Design Development .............................................................................................................. $21,000 
Construction Documents ........................................................................................................ $17,900 

Total Fee ............................................................................................................................... $38,900 

Ratcliff proposes to provide the services outlined above on an actual time spent, not to exceed Thirty 
Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars ($38,900) without written authorization by the Owner. 

Attachment A



 

 
Reimbursable expenses are a separate amount and will be billed at actual cost. Professional renderings 
are excluded from the scope of work described above and may be commissioned as necessary or 
requested by the Owner.  
 
Please let us know if you have additional questions regarding our proposal or require additional 
information. If the proposal is acceptable, we will work with you to formalize a contract. 
  
Very truly yours,  
RATCLIFF 
 
 
 
Dan Wetherell, AIA  
Principal-in-Charge  
 



SCOPE OF SERVICES - INTERIORS Fee Estimate Form RATCLIFF

Project:  Colma Town Hall
Project No.:   Furniture Specifications
Date:  20170928 REVISED 20171012

Note 1:  Furniture Specifications stand as Basis of Design; in-kind alternatives may be submitted for approval; include stipulation in RFP

Note 2:  Conceptual Furniture Plan must be modeled and dimensioned with final furniture selections by furniture dealer; include stipulation in RFP N/A Project Sr. Proj. Sr. Proj. Intermed. Project
Note 3:  Furniture Plans by furniture dealer must include installation/anchorage requirements; include stipulation in RFP Date Principal Architect Designer Designer I Admin.
Note 4:  Price Quotation by furniture dealer to include images, finish and upholstery samples; include stipulation in RFP $245 $166 $166 $122 $78 Hours Labor Rate

MILESTONE/DELIVERABLE SUBJECT TASK Dan W. Bill W. Bonnie Andrea Admin.

DD Design Development - Estimated 6 Weeks

Proceed as modeled

Meet Project Target Collaborate with vendor RE products discounted in Purchasing Contract (County?) to meet 

furniture budget target 2 4 16 0 4 26 $4,122

Prepare Presentation Materials Prepare presentation with images representing products specified as Basis of Design in 

type, performance, finishes; estimated pricing 0 0 28 16 4 48 $6,912

(1) Meeting without Ratcliff Town of Colma Internal Review Review presentation; achieve consensus to move forward 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0

Documentation Annotate Power Point with Client Comments as visual Minutes to conclude DD 0 0 16 4 4 24 $3,456

Coordinate with dealer in demo items; rate 

by written format; compile results

Prepare rating form; compile results; submit to Colma for approval

1 4 16 4 4 29 $4,365

(1) Meeting with Ratcliff Ratcliff Presents plan to Council Final review 2 5 5 0 0 12 $2,150

CD Construction Documents - Estimated 8 Weeks Subtotal $21,005

Proceed as modeled

Documentation Dimension furniture plans, finalize furniture specifications as PDF, collaborate with 

manufacturers 0 2 38 4 4 48 $7,440

Documentation Submit furniture specifications for final pricing 0 0 16 0 4 20 $7,440

Documentation Review pricing quotation; annotate required revisions and corrections 0 0 16 0 4 20 $2,968

Documentation Review and comment on RFP document prepared by Town Staff 0 4 16 4 4 28 $28

Subtotal $17,876

Total Hours by Staff Category 5 19 167 32 34 383
Total Billable $1,225 $3,154 $27,722 $3,904 $2,652 $38,881

TASK TOTAL
ESTIMATED HOURS BY LABOR/STAFF CATEGORY 

P:\Colma Town Hall\1 Administration\12 Agreements\Proposals\FFE\20170928_FFE Work_Plan_REV_20171012 Page 1 of 1





WH

UP

UP

DN

A
L
IG

N

A
L
IG

N

MECH /
STORAGE

013

MECH.
009

UNISEX
011B

UNISEX
011A

JAN.
012

SECURE
FILE

STORAGE
008

STORAGE
014

STORAGE
006

STAFF
KITCHEN &

BREAK
ROOM

007

BASEMENT
OFFICE

002

FILE
STORAGE

005

IT/TEL
003

ELECTRICAL
004

MECH.
015

BASEMENT
LOBBY

001

SHOWER
010

C5

CG1 CG1

RB2

RS3

-

CC1

RB2

RS1

RB2

CC1

RB2

RS1

RB2

CPT-1

-

CC1

-

CC1

-

CC1

RB2

RS1

PT-1

-

CC1

-

CC1

-

CC1

-

CC2

FIRE
001-C

RB2

CC1

PT-4

PT-5

PT-2

PT-2

-

TL-1A

PT-2

-

TL-1A

PT-3

PT-3 PT-3

PT-3

PT-3

PT-2

PT-2

B1 B1 C4

C5 D

B1B1

B1

B2B1B2B3

B1

B1

B1 B1

B1

ELEV.
000-A

x

x

LINE OF FLOOR 

OPENING ABOVE

A-611

D1

B1

B1

C2

C5

B1

B1

B1

E

PT-1

STL-1

-

M

-

CC1

PT-3

-

CC1

PT-3

-

CC1

PT-3

MACH RM
000-C

AC RM
000-E

STOR.
001-B

2

XX

XX

XX

WALL FINISH

BASE FINISH 

FLOOR FINISH

UPPER CABINET FINISH

COUNTERTOP FINISH

LOWER CABINET FINISH

CEILING FINISHXX

CG
CORNER GUARD LOCATION

XX

XX

XX

UPPER WALL FINISH

GUARD RAIL FINISH

WAINSCOT FINISH

XX

XX

XX

X#
SIGNAGE TYPE

SEE A-602

NOT INCLUDED IN CONTRACT UNLESS NOTED 

OTHERWISE

FURNITURE ITEM INCLUDED IN CONTRACT, 

REFER TO FURNITURE SCHEDULE AND DETAILS

(H) TILE, SPEC SECTION 09 30 90, TO REMAIN 

HATCH LEGEND:

XX EXTENT OF WALL FINISH

NEW LOBBY TILE, REFER TO SHEET A-611 FOR 

ADDITIONAL LAYOUT DETAILS

1. NOT USED

2. INFORMATION IN COLOR AND MATERIAL LOCATION PLANS IS FOR COLOR AND  

PATTERN ONLY, NOT TO DETERMINE ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION.

3. WHERE DIFFERING FLOOR FINISH MATERIALS MEET AT DOORS, THE SEAM SHALL  

OCCUR DIRECTLY BELOW THE CENTERLINE OF THE CLOSED DOOR, U.O.N.

4. EXTEND FLOOR PATTERN TO WALL UNDER CASEWORK. LENGTH/GRAIN OF FLOOR 

SHEET GOODS TO BE IN CONSISTENT DIRECTION FOR ANY ONE AREA, TYP.

5. PATCH AND REPAIR AREAS AFFECTED BY DEMOLITION. FINISH TO MATCH ADJACENT 

SURFACES, U.O.N.

6. NOT USED

7. NOT USED

8. ALL MECHANICAL ACCESSORIES THAT ARE PRIMED ONLY AND ACCESS DOORS TO BE 

PAINTED TO MATCH SURROUNDING WALL. NOTIFY ARCHITECT FOR FINISHED ITEMS 

NOT MATCHING SURROUNDING WALL.

9. ALL EXPOSED GYPSUM BOARD AND CONCRETE SURFACES TO BE PAINTED PT-1 

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

10. SEE SHEET A-402 FOR ENLARGED TOILET PLANS & ELEVATIONS FOR TOILET ROOM 

LAYOUTS.  

11. SUBMIT FLOOR SEAMING DIAGRAM FOR APPROVAL BEFORE PURCHASE OF MATERIAL.

12. PROVIDE TRANSITION/REDUCER STRIPS AT ALL FLOOR MATERIAL CHANGES, AND 

FEATHER SUBFLOOR TO ACCOMODATE FOR DIFFERENCES IN GAUGES.

13. SEE SHEET A-561 FOR FLOOR TRANSITION DETAILS.  IDENTIFY TRANSITION/ REDUCER 

STRIPS IN SHOP DRAWINGS.

14. DO NOT SCALE THE DRAWINGS. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SITE 

REVIEW AND VERIFICATION OF ALL QUANTITIES OF MATERIALS REQUIRED TO 

COMPLETE THE INSTALLATION.

15. EXTEND FLOOR PATTERN TO WALL UNDER COUNTER AND FACE OF CASEWORK TOE 

SPACE, TYPICAL.

16. ALL MATERIAL OF ONE PATTERN/COLOR SHALL BE OF THE SAME DYE LOT.

17. RESILIENT BASE SHALL BE FROM A CONTINUOUS ROLL.

18. FOR FINISHES NOT SHOWN IN SCHEDULES, SEE PLANS THIS SHEET AND RCP A-110.

ENTRY
FOYER

100

GALLERY
101

KITCHENETTE
106

VAULT
107

COUNCIL
CHAMBER

104
HALLWAY

105

MEN'S
TOILET

103

WOMEN'S
TOILET

102

10'-6" 10'-6" 21'-0 1/8"

7
'-
6
 1

3
/1

6
"

7
'-
6
 3

/1
6
"

13'-11 7/8" 1'-0" 7'-9 3/8"

LOBBY
108

PT1

-

EWS1

EWB-2

CPT-4

B3

AS-113

C3

D

E

A-580

B3

A-580

D1

RB2

RS2

XWB-2

CPT-4

A4

A-542

B2

A-542

RB2

CPT-2

RB2

TL-0A

WB-1

TL-1A

WB-1

TL-1A

RB2

CPT-1

RB2

RS-1

RB2

CPT-3

WB-1

CPT-1

WB-1

TL-1A

A-611

A3

PT-1A

PT-6

PT-1A

PT-1

PT-1A

PT-1A

PT-1A

PT-1A

B1 B1 B1 B1 B1B1

B1

B1

B1

B1

B1

B1

B1

C4 C4

EC3

ELEV.
000-A

OFFICE
130

ACCOUNTING
DOUBLE
OFFICE

131

CITY
OFFICE

MANAGER
134

CITY
COUNCIL/CITY

ATTORNEY
135

OFFICE
136

OFFICE
137

OFFICE
138

SMALL
CONF. RM.

139

STAFF
TOILET

125

SEC.
RECORD

131A

STAFF
TOILET

124

SHARED
COPY
ROOM

114

LARGE
CONF. RM.

120

LIFT
106-B

RECEPTION
SUPPORT

111

PANTRY
115

RECEPTION
WORKSTATION

109

OPEN
OFFICE

113

CORRIDOR
NORTH
WEST
116

OFFICE
132

OFFICE
133

NORTH
EAST

CORRIDOR
112

ELEVATOR
LOBBY

110

JAN. CLOS.
114A

PT-3

(E) WD STAIRS TO 

REMAIN, PROTECT

CHAIR, PORTABLE 

N.I.C. TYP., U.N.O.

A-611

D3

PT-2
PT-1A

B1

B1

WB-2

FS, SAVD

TYP. INT. FINISHES FOR OFFICES (130, 131, 131A, 

132, 133, 135, 136, 137, 138)

X

xxx

XX

B1

O

C2

C3

D

C4

B1 B1

B1

OPEN

STL-1

EPOXY

TREAD/RISER

STL-1

TR-1

RB2

CC1

PT-1

STL-1

TL-1A

DN

A-611

A4

WB-1

TL-1B

1

AF - RFI 26

A-580

D2

M

J

J

EXACT LOCATION OF SIGNAGE 

TO BE VIF AND APPROVED BY 

ARCHITECT AND OWNER

+/- 8'-2 5/8" +/- 8'-2 5/8" +/- 8'-2 5/8" +/- 8'-2 5/8"

DASHED LINES REPRESENT EXPANSION 

JOINT DETAIL IN TILE WORK TO OCCUR 

BETWEEN WHOLE TILES IN DISTANCES 

BETWEEN 8' AND 12' APART EACH 

DIRECTION, TYPICAL FOR LOBBY RM 108 AND 

RECEPTION WORKSTATION RM 109.

1
'-
6
"

RB2

CPT-1

RB2

CPT-3

RB2

CPT-1

RB2

CPT-3

RB2

CPT-1

RB2

CPT-3

PT1

PT3

PT-5

PT-1A

PT5

PT-1A

PT5

PT5

RB2

CPT-1

RB2

CPT-3

PT-1A

RB2

CPT-1

RB2

CPT-3

PT-1A

PT-5 PT-5 PT-5 PT-5 PT-5

PT-4

PT-3

PT-6

PT-1A

PT-6

PT-3

PT-3
RB2

CC1

PT-1

PT-4

RB2

CPT-3
RB2

CPT-1

RB2

CPT-1

RB2

CPT-3

RB2

CPT-1

RB2

CPT-3

RB2

CPT-1

RB2

CPT-3

RB2

CPT-1

RB2

CPT-3

RB2

CPT-1

PT-1APT-1APT-1APT-1A

PT-3

PT-1A

PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET 
NUMBER:

SCALE:

SHEET TITLE:

5856 Doyle Street

Emeryville, CA 94608

Tel  510 899 6400

www.ratcliffarch.com

As indicated

9
/2

0
/2

0
1
7
 7

:3
3
:0

1
 P

M

A-610

ENLARGED FFE PLAN,

SIGNAGE PLAN, &

FINISH SCHEDULE

34003.10

9
/2

1
/2

0
1
7

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 -

 I
N

F
IL

L
  
&

 S
IT

E
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

 -
 B

ID
 S

E
T

 -
 A

D
D

E
N

D
U

M
 1

TOWN OF COLMA

1198 EL CAMINO REAL

COLMA, CA 94014

COLMA TOWN HALL

CAMPUS -

RENOVATIONS AND

ADDITIONS

 1/8" = 1'-0"
A2

ENLARGED FURNITURE PLAN - LEVEL 0
PROJECT NORTH

TRUE NORTH

FINISH LEGEND

ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE - LEVEL 0

ROOM
# ROOM NAME

FINISHES
COMMENTSCEILING WALL BASE FLOOR

000-B ELEV. MECH. RM. NONE PT-1A - CC1

000-C MACH RM NONE PT-1A RB2 CC1

000-E AC RM NONE PT-1A RB2 CC1

001 BASEMENT LOBBY PT-1B PT-1A RB2 RS1

001-C FIRE NONE PT-1A RB2 CC1

002 BASEMENT OFFICE ACT1 PT-1A RB2 CC1

003 IT/TEL NONE PT-1A RB2 CC1

004 ELECTRICAL NONE PT-1A RB2 CC1

005 FILE STORAGE NONE PT-1A RB2 CC1

006 STORAGE PT-1B PT-1A RB2 RS3

007 STAFF KITCHEN & BREAK ROOM PT-1B PT-1A RB2 RS1

008 SECURE FILE STORAGE PT-1B PT-1A RB2 CC1

009 MECH. PT-1B PT-1A RB2 CC1

010 SHOWER PT-2B PT-2A COVE VNL1 COVED VINYL BASE

011A UNISEX PT-2B TL-1A, PT-2A TL-1A SEE INTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR TL-5 LOCATIONS ON WALL

011B UNISEX PT-2B TL-1A, PT-2A TL-1A SEE INTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR TL-5 LOCATIONS ON WALL

012 JAN. PT-2B PT-2A COVE CC1

013 MECH / STORAGE PT-1B PT-1A RB2 CC1

014 STORAGE PT-1B PT-1A RB2 (E) CLEAN FLOOR

015 MECH. PT-1B PT-1A RB2 CC2

FINISH MATERIAL LEGEND

CODE MATERIAL BASIS OF DESIGN MANUFACTURER PRODUCTS COLOR/FINISH SIZE/MODULE COMMENTS

CASEWORK

PL1 PLASTIC LAMINATE FORMICA COLOR CORE 2 7223-90 NEW WHITE

PL2 PLASTIC LAMINATE FORMICA ARTISAN FINISH 6402-43 THERMO WALNUT

PL3 PLASTIC LAMINATE FORMICA ARTISAN FINISH 6402-43 THERMO WALNUT

PL4 PLASTIC LAMINATE FORMICA CRYSTAL 42

PL5 PLASTIC LAMINATE FORMICA 180 fx (WOODGRAIN)

PL6 PLASTIC LAMINATE FORMICA WOODBRUSH WR

SS1a SOLID SURFACE DUPONT CORIAN, PRICE GROUP ( C ) SOLID SURFACE 1/2" ACRYLIC - DOVE, SATIN FINISH REFER TO FLOOR PLAN AND

CASEWORK DETAILS

SS1b SOLID SURFACE WILSONART SOLID SURFACE 1/2" TRITON - 9212CM, SATIN FINISH REFER TO FLOOR PLAN AND

CASEWORK DETAILS

SS2a SOLID SURFACE QUARTZ

SS2b SOLID SURFACE QUARTZ

CEILING

ACT1 ACOUSTICAL TILE ARMSTRONG WORLD INDUSTRIES, INCORPORATED OPTIMA SQUARE TEGULAR, PRODUCT

NO. 3355

WHITE, FINE TEXTURED FINISH 24" x 24" x 1"

AWC1 ACOUSTICAL WOOD CEILING RULON INTERNATIONAL LINEAR OPEN STYLE MAPLE, TRANSPARENT STAIN COLOR TO

BE SELECTED BY THE ARCHITECT

3/4" THICK x 3 3/4" WIDE

FLOOR

CC1 SEALED CONCRETE

CC2 UNFINISHED CONCRETE

CPT-1 CARPET TILE SHAW CONTRACT SKETCH TILE 59591. DESERT 33201 24"x24"

CPT-2 CARPET TILE SHAW CONTRACT IMPRINT TILE 59592. DESERT 33201 24"x24"

CPT-3 CARPET TILE SHAW CONTRACT VEIL TILE 59594. DESERT 33201 24"x24"

CPT-4 WOVEN AXMINSTER BENTLEY BRILLANTE FIELD: KR880388, ACCENT: KR 880357 BROADLOOM

CPT-5 NOT USED

PP1 PRESSED CONCRETE WASAU TECTURA DESIGNS - TEXTURED SAND

SERIES

TS-20 (QS) 24" x 24" x 2" FIELD, SEE SHEET AS-111 FOR LOCATION AND

PATTERN

PP2 PRESSED CONCRETE WASAU TECTURA DESIGNS - TEXTURED SAND

SERIES

TS-40 (QS) 24" x 24" x 2" ACCENT, SEE SHEET AS-111 FOR LOCATION AND

PATTERN

RS1 LINOLEUM SHEET FORBO MARMOLEUM MARMOLEUM CONCRETE 3711 CLOUDY SAND _ft x 79" x .1" THICK SHEETS

RS2 LINOLEUM SHEET FORBO MARMOLEUM MARMOLEUM REAL 3120 ROSATO 105' x 79" x .1" THICK SHEETS

RS3 LINOLEUM SHEET FORBO MARMOLEUM MARMOLEUM REAL 3252 SPARROW 105' x 79" x .1" THICK SHEETS

RT1 LINOLEUM MODULAR TILE FORBO MARMOLEUM MARMOLEUM MODULAR SHADE t3711 CLOUDY SAND 19.7" x 9.8" x .1" THICK SHEETS

RT2 LINOLEUM MODULAR TILE FORBO MARMOLEUM MARMOLEUM MODULAR MARBLE t3120 ROSATO 19.7" x 9.8" x .1" THICK SHEETS

RT3 LINOLEUM MODULAR TILE FORBO MARMOLEUM MARMOLEUM MODULAR MARBLE t3252 SPARROW 19.7" x 9.8" x .1" THICK SHEETS

TL-0A PORCELAIN TILE ITALICS GENESIS MOKA 12" x 24" - LAYOUT 1/3 RUNNING FIELD

TL-1A PORCELAIN TILE ITALICS GENESIS AVANA 12" x 24" - LAYOUT 1/3 RUNNING FIELD

TL-1B PORCELAIN TILE DALTILE SLATE ATTACHE 50% MULTI GREEN SA09 AND 50% MULTI

BROWN SA08

2" X 2" X 1/4" THICK ACCENT

TL-2A TILE ITALICS LYCIAN ELEMENTAL PATARA, SEE SPEC 09 30 00 BORDER

TL-2B TILE ITALICS SEE SPEC 09 30 00 NARROW BORDER

TL-3 MARBLE TILE ITALICS LYCAN ELEMENTAL LARGE

BASKETWEAVE

PATARA, SEE SPEC 09 30 00 FIELD

TL-4 MARBLE TILE ITALICS LYCIAN ELEMENTAL PATARA, SEE SPEC 09 30 00 12" x 24"

TL-10 EXISTING TILE RESTORATION HISTORIC FIELD PATTERN & BASE SEE SPEC 09 30 90 TO BE CLEANED, REFURBISHED, AND REPAIRED

TL-11 NEW PATTERNED QUARRY TILE TO MATCH HISTORIC FIELD PATTERN SEE SPEC 09 30 90 SUPPLY AND INSTALL AS REQUIRED TO REPAIR (E)

TILE

TL-12A NEW PATTERNED QUARRY TILE TO MATCH HISTORIC NARROW BORDER SEE SPEC 09 30 90 SUPPLY AND INSTALL AS REQUIRED TO REPAIR (E)

TILE

TL-12B NEW PATTERNED QUARRY TILE TO MATCH HISTORIC WIDE BORDER SEE SPEC 09 30 90 SUPPLY AND INSTALL AS REQUIRED TO REPAIR (E)

TILE

TR1 EPOXY TERRAZZO

VNL1 VINYL

FLOOR BASE

RB2 RESILIENT BASE JOHNSONITE TIGHTLOCK WALL BASE FOR RESILIENT

FLOORING

4.5" H

SS STAINLESS STEEL BASE

TL-13 NOT USED

WB1 WOOD BASE SEE WOOD MOLDING SCHEDULE

GUARDRAIL

STL-1 PAINTED STEEL R&B WAGNER NO. "H5853" SEE SPEC 05 70 00

WALL

CG1 CORNER GUARD C/S ACROVYN

PL1 VENEER PLASTER

PT-1A PAINT, GENERAL KELLY-MOORE FLICKERING FIREFLY KM5220 EGGSHELL TYPICAL WALL

PT-1B PAINT, GENERAL KELLY-MOORE WHITEST WHITE KMW43 EGGSHELL TYPICAL CEILING

PT-2A PAINT, GENERAL KELLY-MOORE ACOUSTIC WHITE 46 SEMIGLOSS TYPICAL TOILET RM & SHOWER RM WALLS

PT-2B PAINT, GENERAL KELLY-MOORE WHITEST WHITE KMW43 SEMIGLOSS TYPICAL TOILET RM & SHOWER RM CEILINGS

PT-2C PAINT, ACCENT KELLY-MOORE INVITING VERANDA KM4844 SEMIGLOSS ACCENT

PT-3 PAINT, ACCENT KELLY-MOORE TAWNY DAYLILLY KM5231 EGGSHELL ACCENT

PT-4 PAINT, ACCENT KELLY-MOORE WINTER SUNSET KM5394 EGGSHELL ACCENT

PT-5 PAINT, ACCENT KELLY-MOORE BAY ISLE POINTE KMA28 EGGSHELL ACCENT

PT-6 PAINT, ACCENT KELLY-MOORE GREEN BANANAS KM5148 EGGSHELL ACCENT

TL-4 TILE "ITALICS" LYCIAN ELEMENTAL PATARA SEE SPEC 09 30 00

TL-5 PORCELAIN TILE ITALICS NATURE VARIES, SEE SPEC 09 30 00 4" x 16"  VERTICAL ORIENTATION,

SEE DWGS AND SPEC

AT STAFF T/R ROOMS 124 & 125

TL-14 PORCELAIN TILE ITALICS NATURE MILK 4" x 16" - LAYOUT OF 1/3 RUNNING AT PANTRY RM 115 BACKSPLASH

WP1 FIBERGLASS REINFORCED PLASTIC

WS1 WOOD WAINSCOT REPAIR, REFINISH, SEAL

GENERAL NOTES

ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE - LEVEL 1 EAST

ROOM
# ROOM NAME

FINISHES
COMMENTSCEILING WALL BASE FLOOR

100 ENTRY FOYER (E) (E) (E) TL10 RESTORATION SPEC 09 30 90

101 GALLERY PT-1B PT-1A RB2 CPT4

102 WOMEN'S TOILET PT-2B TL4, PT-2A TL13 TL2, TL3

103 MEN'S TOILET PT-2B TL4, PT-2A TL13 TL2, TL3

104 COUNCIL CHAMBER (E) (E) (E) CPT4 (E) WOOD STEPS TO BE REFINISHED, PATCH (E) FINISHES AS REQUIRED

105 HALLWAY PT-1B PT-1A TL13 TL10, TL11

106 KITCHENETTE PT-1B PT-1A RB2 RS2

106-B LIFT N/A N/A N/A N/A

107 VAULT NIC NIC NIC NIC EXISTING FINISHES TO REMAIN

108 LOBBY (E) PT-1A RB2 TL1A, TL1B

111 RECEPTION SUPPORT PT-1B PT-1A RB2 CPT-1

112 NORTH EAST CORRIDOR PT-1B PT-3 RB2 CPT-1

ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE - LEVEL 1 WEST

ROOM
# ROOM NAME

FINISHES
COMMENTSCEILING WALL BASE FLOOR

109 RECEPTION WORKSTATION PT-1B PT-1A WB-1 TL-1A

111 RECEPTION SUPPORT PT-1B PT-1A RB2 CPT-1

113 OPEN OFFICE AWC1 PT-1A RB-2 CPT-1

114 SHARED COPY ROOM PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A RB-2 RS-1

115 PANTRY PT-1B/ACT1 PT-6 RB-2 TL-0A

116 CORRIDOR NORTH WEST ACT1 PT-1A/PT-6 RB-2 TL-0A

120 LARGE CONF. RM. PT-1B/AWC1 PT-1A/PT-4 RB-2 CPT-2

124 STAFF  TOILET PT-2B PT-2A RB-2 TL-0A SEE INTERIOR ELEVATION FOR TL-5 LOCATION, AND LAYOUT ON

WALLS

125 STAFF  TOILET PT-2B PT-2A RB-2 TL-0A SEE INTERIOR ELEVATION FOR TL-5 LOCATION, AND LAYOUT ON

WALLS

130 OFFICE PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A/PT-5 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

131 ACCOUNTING DOUBLE OFFICE PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A/PT-5 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

131A SEC. RECORD PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A/PT-5 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

132 OFFICE PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A/PT-5 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

133 OFFICE PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A/PT-5 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

134 CITY OFFICE MANAGER PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A/PT-5 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

135 CITY COUNCIL/CITY ATTORNEY PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A/PT-5 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

136 OFFICE PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A/PT-5 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

137 OFFICE PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A/PT-5 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

138 OFFICE PT-1B/ACT1 PT-1A/PT-5 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

139 SMALL CONF. RM. PT-1B/AWC1 PT-3 RB-2 CPT-1/CPT-3

 1/8" = 1'-0"
A1

ENLARGED PLAN PROJECT NORTH

TRUE NORTH

ISSUE SCHEDULE NO. DATE
BID PACKAGE 1 8-14-2017
BID ADDENDUM 1 2 9-21-2017

2

2

2

2

22

2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re: TOT Study Session  Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Michael Laughlin, City Planner, CSG Consultants 

VIA:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: October 25, 2017 

SUBJECT: Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) Study Session 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session for informational purposes only. No City Council action is required; 
however, staff seeks comments, questions, impressions and opinions from each Council 
member regarding issues and concerns. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

An Economic Development Strategic Plan prepared by Bay Area Economics (BAE) for the Town 
in 2011-2012 noted that Town revenues are heavily dependent on retail sales and card room 
taxes.  The study identified types of businesses that could diversify revenue sources, including 
the addition of a hotel.  In order to generate tax revenue from occupancy at a hotel in Colma, 
the Town will have to establish a Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT).  A TOT must be approved by 
Colma voters at an election. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None at this time. 

BACKGROUND 

At the time of the preparation of the 2011-2012 Colma Economic Development Strategic Plan, 
the Town was coming out of the recession. Auto and retail sales tax revenues to the Town were 
greatly reduced since 2008, requiring the Town to reduce services and suspend capital 
improvement projects. In addition, there were several vacant auto dealership buildings. The 
economic study identified business types missing from Colma through a “leakage analysis”, 
including restaurants, a hotel and home furnishings. The study recommended consideration of 
these other types of businesses to diversify Town revenue sources and to encourage increased 
spending by those visiting the Town.  

Item #5



Staff Report re: TOT Study Session   Page 2 of 3 

In addition to the Economic Plan, the Town commissioned the preparation of an Urban Design 
Study to look at vacant and underutilized sites in Town.  The Urban Design Study is a long-
range plan which primarily looks at appropriate development form to complement the Town's 
existing development.  The Plan identifies locations where a hotel could be located.  Two 
possible locations include the Kohl's property and the Bocci monuments site at the Colma BART 
station.  However, a hotel could be considered at any appropriately sized commercial site in the 
Town.  
 
As part of the City Council's Strategic Plan, the City Council has identified the establishment of a 
TOT as an activity that will allow the Town to generate tax revenue from occupancy at Colma 
hotels, as they are developed in the future.  
 
Since the recession, there has been a great deal of interest in hotel development in South San 
Francisco, San Bruno, Millbrae and Daly City.  A developer has expressed interest in developing 
a hotel on Serramonte Boulevard just north of Gellert Boulevard.  
 
ANALYSIS 

California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 7280 authorizes cities to levy a TOT on transient 
guests for the privilege of occupying a hotel. The tax was originally designed to compensate 
local government for the increased public service costs incurred by serving local tourists. There 
is no cap on the tax rate for a TOT under State law; however, any new or increased TOT 
requires voter approval under Proposition 218. 
 
For a general TOT (a tax imposed for general government purposes), a simple majority (50% 
plus one vote) approval is required.  For a special TOT (a tax imposed for special purposes, 
including taxes imposed for specific purposes and placed into a general fund), 2/3 voter 
approval is required.  Staff recommends that the Council consider a general TOT because only a 
simple majority vote is required to approve the tax.  With Colma’s small voting population, a 2/3 
supermajority may be difficult to achieve.  
 
If approved by the voters, the TOT would be applied to all charges for any “transient 
occupancy” (guest stay) lasting 30 consecutive days or less in a Colma hotel.  Hotels that 
operate in Colma would be required to collect TOT tax from the “transient” (guest) as part of 
the bill and remit that tax directly to the Town with a tax return for verification purposes, similar 
to way that Lucky Chances does for their casino use.   Many California cities have TOT’s, so this 
collection/remittance process has become standard hotel business practice.    
 
In order to place a measure on the November 2018 ballot, the City Council will need to consider 
the text of the measure, establish a tax rate, and take an action, by a 2/3 vote, to place the 
measure on the ballot.  If the City Council is supportive of placing a measure on the November 
2018 ballot, staff would come back to the City Council in early 2018 with the necessary 
documents to consider.  If the City Council approves placement of the ballot measure, it would 
then be forwarded to the County Registrar by the City Clerk in the summer of 2018.  If 
approved by voters, the provisions of the tax will be placed in the Municipal Code.  
 
Staff has prepared a survey of local TOT tax rates.  As shown on the attached summary, the 
rates range from 10% in Daly City to 12% for a majority of northern San Mateo County 



Staff Report re: TOT Study Session   Page 3 of 3 

jurisdictions.  While the City Council may propose a rate higher or lower than 12%, the 12% 
rate would be staff's initial recommendation.  Setting the rate higher may require the hotel 
operator to set their room rates proportionately lower so that the room rate with taxes is 
competitive in the market area, making the Town less attractive to hotel developers.  
 
Given recent legal developments with Internet bookings and the “sharing economy”, staff could 
prepare at the Council’s direction a ballot measure that includes modern terminology to ensure 
that the TOT is fully and fairly applied to all “transient occupancies”, whether they are booked 
directly with the hotel, through an online travel company (OTC), or through Air B&B, VBRO and 
other short-term rental websites.  
 
Regular searches by staff have identified no short-term rentals in Colma, and there are 
currently no restrictions on them.  If the Council wishes to allow short-term rentals, staff will 
need to follow this up with a recommendation to City Council on a permit procedure.  The City 
Council could also express a preference to not permit short term rentals in the Town and 
thereby eliminate the need to have this provision in the ballot measure.  
 
Council Adopted Values 
 
The study session is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it considers the 
long-term economic stability and diversity of the Town. 
 
Sustainability Impact 

N/A 
 
Alternatives 

None 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council is encouraged to ask questions about the establishment of a TOT.  In addition, 
the City Council is encouraged to consider the appropriate percentage of tax if there is general 
agreement to proceed. The City Council may also wish to discuss or ask questions of staff about 
other types of short-term rentals which are currently not regulated by the Town.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. TOT survey  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 Page 1 of 4 

Town of Colma TOT Survey 

Daly City 

3.32.020 - Tax imposed. 
For the privilege of occupancy in any hotel, each transient is subject to and shall pay a 

tax in the amount of ten percent of the rent charged by the operator. This tax constitutes a 
debt owed by the transient to the city which is extinguished only by payment to the operator 
or to the city. The transient shall pay the tax to the operator of the hotel at the time the rent 
is paid. If the rent is paid in installments, a proportionate share of the tax shall be paid with 
each installment. The unpaid tax shall be due upon the transient's ceasing to occupy space in 
the hotel. If for any reason the tax due is not paid to the operator of the hotel, the tax 
administrator may require that such tax shall be paid directly to the tax administrator. 

Pacifica 

Sec. 3-7.03. - Tax imposed. 
For the privilege of occupancy in any hotel, each transient shall be subject to and shall 

pay a tax in the amount of twelve (12%) percent of the rent charged by the operator. 
Such tax shall constitute a debt owed by the transient to the City, which debt shall be 
extinguished only by payment to the operator or to the City. The transient shall pay the tax to 
the operator of the hotel at the time the rent is paid. If the rent is paid in installments, a 
proportionate share of the tax shall be paid with each installment. The unpaid tax shall be due 
upon the transient's ceasing to occupy space in the hotel. If for any reason the tax due is not 
paid to the operator of the hotel, the Tax Administrator may require that such tax shall be 
paid directly to the Tax Administrator. 

San Francisco 

How is Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT, aka “Hotel Tax”) calculated and collected on a 
transaction for transient accommodations? 

The TOT is 14% of the rent and is added to the amount of rent charged to the guest.  To 
calculate TOT, multiply the rent charged by 14%.  Under Tax Collector Regulation 2012-1, 
“rent” is the entire amount charged to the guest, regardless whether some or all of those 
charges are designated as “service fees” or “advertising fees.”  For example, if a guest is 
charged $110 plus a $20 “service fee,” the taxable rent is $130.  The tax would be 14% of 
$130, which is $18.20.  To collect the TOT, the party that receives the rent payment adds 

City TOT % Code Section 
Brisbane 12% 3.24.030 
Burlingame 12% 4.09.025 
Daly City 10% 3.32.020 
Millbrae 12% 
Pacifica 12% 3-7.03 
San Francisco 14% 502.8-1(a) 
South San Francisco 10%: 9%; 1% 4.20.030; 4.20.033 

Attachment A



   Page 2 of 4 

TOT to the rent and collects both at the same time.  In the last example, a guest would be 
charged $110 + $20 + $18.20 = $148.20.  The party receiving payment from the guest must 
provide a receipt.  The receipt must separately state the amount of TOT collected. 

Burlingame 

For the privilege of occupancy in any hotel of the City of Burlingame, each transient is subject 
to and shall pay a transient occupancy tax of 12% of the rent charged by the hotel operator. 
Please refer to the TOT Ordinance or Chapter 4.09 of the Burlingame Municipal Code for 
detailed information. 

4.09.025 Tax rate. 
     For the privilege of occupancy in any hotel, each transient is subject to and shall pay a tax 
in the amount of twelve (12) percent of the rent charged by the operator. (Ord No. 1668, 
(2001); Ord. 1840 § 1, (2009)) 

  

South San Francisco 

4.20.030 Tax imposed. 
    For the privilege of occupancy in any hotel, each transient is subject to and shall pay a 
general tax in the amount of nine percent of the rent charged by the operator and a special 
tax of one percent. The total general and special taxes imposed pursuant to this chapter shall 
equal ten percent of the rent charged by the operator. If a room is rented by a firm, 
corporation, partnership, joint venture or any other organization on a long term basis, the tax 
imposed by this section shall fall upon and be borne by each individual who occupies or has the 
right to occupy the room for a period of thirty consecutive days or less. The tax constitutes a 
debt owed by the transient to the city, which is extinguished only by payment to the operator 
or to the city. The transient shall pay the tax to the operator of the hotel at the time the rent is 
paid. If the rent is paid in installments, a proportionate share of the tax shall be paid with each 
installment. The unpaid tax shall be due upon the transient’s ceasing to occupy space in the 
hotel. The operator shall be liable for any amount of tax that he or she fails to collect or remit; 
and must remit to the city the entire amount of tax due and collected. If for any reason the tax 
due is not paid to the operator of the hotel, the tax administrator may require that such tax 
shall be paid directly to the tax administrator. (Ord. 1419 § 1, 2009; Ord. 1364 § 1, 2005; Ord. 
1126 § 2, 1993; Ord. 772 § 1, 1978; Ord. 676 § 1, 1974; Ord. 638 § 1, 1972; Ord. 554 § 3, 
1966) 
 

4.20.033 Special tax imposed. 
    There is imposed a special tax upon the privilege of occupancy in any hotel. Each transient is 
subject to and shall pay a special tax of one percent of the rent charged by the operator. The 
revenue generated by the one percent increment shall only be used for the purpose of funding 
parks, recreation, library and public safety services and shall be in addition to, and separated 
from, the general excise tax imposed pursuant to Chapter 4.20.030. If a room is rented by a 
firm, corporation, partnership, joint venture or any other organization on a long term basis, the 
tax imposed by this section shall fall upon and be borne by each individual who occupies or has 



   Page 3 of 4 

the right to occupy the room for a period of thirty consecutive days or less. The tax constitutes 
a debt owed by the transient to the city which is extinguished only by payment to the operator 
or to the city. The transient shall pay the tax to the operator of the hotel at the time the rent is 
paid. If the rent is paid in installments, a proportionate share of the tax shall be paid with each 
installment. The unpaid tax shall be due upon the transient’s ceasing to occupy space in the 
hotel. If for any reason the tax due is not paid to the operator of the hotel, the tax 
administrator may require that such tax shall be paid directly to the tax. (Ord. 1364 § 1, 2005) 

 

Millbrae 

3.30.030 Tax imposed. 

For the privilege of occupancy in any hotel, each transient is subject to and shall pay a 
tax in the amount of twelve percent of the rent charged by the operator, commencing on 
January 1, 2010. Said tax constitutes a debt owed by the transient to the city which is 
extinguished only by payment to the operator or to the city. The transient shall pay the tax to 
the operator of the hotel at the time the rent is paid. If the rent is paid in installments, a 
proportionate share of the tax shall be paid with each installment. The unpaid tax shall be due 
upon the transient’s ceasing to occupy space in the hotel. If for any reason the tax due is not 
paid to the operator of the hotel, the tax administrator may require that such tax shall be paid 
directly to the tax administrator. (Ord. 234, § 1, Amended by Ord. 279, § 1; Ord. 333, § 2; 
Ord. 404, § 1; Ord. 486, § 1, Ord. 573, § 1 and Ord. 725, § 1; 1976 Code § 3-6.03; 1966 
Code § 5377). 

Brisbane 

3.24.030 - Tax imposed. 
For the privilege of occupancy in any hotel, each transient is subject to and shall pay a 

tax in the amount of twelve percent (12%) of the rent charged by the operator. This tax is 
also applicable to the rent of hotel rooms by businesses on a long-term basis for temporary 
use by their clients or employees. Such tax constitutes a debt owed by the transient to the 
city, which is extinguished only by payment to the operator or to the city. The transient shall 
pay the tax to the operator of the hotel at the time the rent is paid. If the rent is paid in 
installments, a proportionate share of the tax shall be paid with each installment. The unpaid 
tax shall be due upon the transient's ceasing to occupy space or rent space for potential 
occupancy, in the hotel. If for any reason the tax due is not paid to the operator of the hotel, 
the tax administrator may require that such tax shall be paid directly to the tax administrator. 

(Ord. 450 § 1(part), 2000). 

(Ord. No. 540, § 1, 11-3-09) 

 

 



   Page 4 of 4 

Menlo Park is the most recent city to have passed a 2% Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) 
increase in San Mateo County. It was done in 2012. Ordinance No. 983 amends their Municipal 
Code to increase the TOT subject to voter approval.  
 
 
Other cities in San Mateo County that have been successful in increasing the Transient 
Occupancy Tax: 

• 2011 – foster city 
• 2011 – Redwood City 
• 2010 – Pacifica 
• 2009 – Burlingame 
• 2009 – Brisbane 
• 2009 – Millbrae 
• 2009 – San Mateo 
• 2009 – South San Francisco 
• 2009 – San Bruno 

 
 
 



Staff Report re: Business Registration Study Session  Page 1 of 6 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Michael Laughlin, City Planner, CSG Consultants 

VIA:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: October 25, 2017 

SUBJECT: Business Registration Fee Study Session 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session for informational purposes only. No City Council action is required; 
however, staff seeks comments, questions, impressions and opinions from each Council 
member regarding issues and concerns. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Town currently charges $26 for all business registrations.  Staff has found that this fee 
does not recover costs to administer the business registration program. Staff would like to 
present information to the Council on options for raising this fee to better recover costs while 
still remaining business friendly. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None at this time. 

ANALYSIS 

The Town's $25 business registration fee has been in place for many years.  Several years ago, 
a state mandated $1 surcharge is required to be collected for the purpose of providing 
information to businesses on accessibility requirements, so the fee collected is $26.  The Town's 
fee is the lowest in San Mateo County and possibly the state.   

Staff has identified the steps and average staff time to process business registrations. For new 
businesses that are permitted, planning staff typically spends 30 minutes to an hour or more 
answering questions from various professionals about zoning, building permits, fictitious 
business names, signage and other aspects of establishing a business in Colma.  For auto 
businesses, staff is also required to review and process a zoning affidavit for the Department of 
Motor Vehicles.  A similar affidavit from the Alcoholic Beverage Control Bureau is required for 
businesses serving or selling alcohol.There is no charge for processing these additional forms.  

Item #6



Staff Report re: Business Registration Study Session  Page 2 of 6 
 

For home occupations, the Town processes a one-time Home Occupation Permit.  The 
application fee for this approval is $50. 
 
Once a business is established, the following common steps are required for renewal.  The 
Town processes approximately 250 in-town and out of town registrations per year: 
 
Task Average Time 

(in minutes) per 
registration 

Renewal notification (review business list, prepare notices and ADA 
information and eblast or mail – 8-9 hours total divided by 250) 

2 

Application Intake by Assistant Planner or Permit Technician (phone 
information, counter assistance, receipt checks, logging checks, electronic 
and paper filing) 

15 

Application completeness review and sign-off by planning staff, contacting 
businesses about incomplete applications and transmittal to Administrative 
Technician 

5 

Logging business registrations and update of contact information by 
Administrative Technician 

5 

Preparation of Business Registration Certificate by Administrative 
Technician and email or mail to applicant 

5 

Processing and deposit of checks by Finance Department 10 
Total: 42  

 
In addition to these common steps, the Planning Department contacts businesses by phone, 
email and in person prior to the renewal deadline to prevent businesses from accruing 
penalties.  In many cases, there is a breakdown between the local business manager and the 
corporate office or third-party business registration processor.  Once a business enters the 
penalty period, staff spends an average of 30 minutes to an hour in enforcement time per 
delinquent business until the business registration is finally submitted.  Every year, there are 
about 20-30 of Colma's average of 250 businesses which require additional staff time to resolve 
issues associated with them.  The City Council increased penalty fees a few years ago, but the 
fees normally do not recover the staff costs with enforcement since most penalties are collected 
in the first two months, when the penalty fee is either $25 or $50. 
 
Considering the total time of 42 or more minutes, not including enforcement time, the current 
business registration fee represents a significant subsidy of staff resources in administering this 
program.  When taking into account staff and consultant salaries and overhead, the $25 covers 
only a fraction of the cost of Town resources.  
 
Jurisdictions typically either charge a flat fee or collect a fee based on the number of employees 
or gross receipts.  Below is a table of local jurisdictions and the fees collected: 
 
 
  



Staff Report re: Business Registration Study Session  Page 3 of 6 
 

Business Registration Survey Table 
 
Jurisdiction Fee Type Application 

Fee 
Minimum Fee 
in addition to 
Application fee 

Maximum Fee 

Daly City  Gross Receipts  None $101 (up to 
$100k gross 
receipts)  

Unlimited - .001 
x gross receipts  

South San 
Francisco 

Varies, see 
attached. 
Additional $15 
database fee and 
$25 Alarm 
registration fee 

$106.75 Plus $18.00 per 
employee  

$117,865 

Brisbane Varies, see 
attached.  

None  $50 for 100 sq. 
ft. home 
occupation or 
50k gross 
receipts 

Unlimited – by 
either gross 
receipts or 
employees 

San Bruno None None $111.00 (up to 
$75k gross 
receipts) 

Unlimited – gross 
receipts  

Millbrae Varies None $27.00 home 
occupation with 
15k in receipts 

Unlimited - 
.20/$1000 

San Carlos Per employee  None $193.00 for 
business w/1 
employee 

$2,471  

San Francisco Gross Receipts None $75 (up to $100k 
gross receipts) 

$35,000 

 
 
There are two options in which the Town can proceed.  The City Council could consider fee 
adjustments that would better cover documented costs for providing the service. This process 
would only require a Council action to amend the Administrative Code Fee Schedule, and 
preparation of a report showing that fees do not exceed the Town’s costs of providing business 
licenses.  If the Council would like the fee to be based on either a gross receipts or a cost per 
employee methodology, this would be considered a tax since the collected fee exceeds the cost 
of providing service. The justification that most jurisdictions use for this tax is that larger 
businesses, their employees and customers directly and indirectly generate a greater need for 
municipal services (i.e. wear and tear on roadways, use of sewer system, use of police services 
etc.). As a tax, a ballot measure would be required. A further discussion of the legal framework 
of these two approaches, as well as the nature and requirements of the two approaches, are 
described below. 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report re: Business Registration Study Session  Page 4 of 6 
 

Legal Framework 
 
In 1996, the California voters adopted Proposition 218, which (among other things) added 
Articles XIII C and XIII D to the California Constitution.  This Constitutional amendment 
required all general taxes be approved by a general majority as part of a general election, and 
that special taxes be approved by a 2/3 majority. Later, in 2010, the California voters adopted 
Proposition 26, which further specified the definition of a tax.  Proposition 26 added, among 
other things, section 1(e) to Article XIII C of the California Constitution. 
 
Pursuant to section 1(e) of Article XIII C, any fee or charge imposed by a local agency such as 
the Town will constitute a “tax” unless it meets one of seven exemptions: 
 

(1) A charge imposed for a specific benefit conferred or privilege granted directly to the 
payor that is not provided to those not charged, and which does not exceed the reasonable 
costs to the local government of conferring the benefit or granting the privilege. 

 
(2) A charge imposed for a specific government service or product provided directly to 

the payor that is not provided to those not charged, and which does not exceed the reasonable 
costs to the local government of providing the service or product. 

 
(3) A charge imposed for the reasonable regulatory costs to a local government for 

issuing licenses and permits, performing investigations, inspections, and audits, enforcing 
agricultural marketing orders, and the administrative enforcement and adjudication thereof. 

 
(4) A charge imposed for entrance to or use of local government property, or the 

purchase, rental, or lease of local government property. 
 
(5) A fine, penalty, or other monetary charge imposed by the judicial branch of 

government or a local government, as a result of a violation of law. 
 
(6) A charge imposed as a condition of property development. 
 
(7) Assessments and property-related fees imposed in accordance with the provisions of 

Article XIII D. 
 
Additionally, Proposition 26 places the burden on the Town to demonstrate, with a 
preponderance of the evidence, that any fee or charge (including a business license fee) is not 
a tax because it meets the requirements of the exemptions above.  
 
The exemptions most applicable to the Town’s business license fee would be exemption 1, 3, 
and 5.  The Town may charge for its costs associated with granting a business license pursuant 
to exemption 1, which includes staff time and labor and any other reasonable associated costs. 
In addition, pursuant to exemption 3, the Town may charge for its reasonable costs associated 
with investigating and enforcing business licenses.  Separate from that, the Town may impose a 
penalty for failing to renew a business license, or operating a business without a valid license. 
These penalties need not be tied to any sort of cost to the Town of enforcing the business 
license requirements.  
 



Staff Report re: Business Registration Study Session  Page 5 of 6 
 

So long as business license fees and associated fees and charges meet these exemptions, the 
Town may adopt such fees and penalties without an election. However, if the fees or charges 
do not meet one of these exemptions, the fees or charges will be considered “taxes” requiring 
voter approval.   
 
Fee for Service 
 
If the Council is amenable to this approach, staff could bring back an amended fee schedule 
that includes the following: 
 

• A one-time zoning clearance fee of approximately $100 to offset the initial cost of 
assisting permitted businesses from operating in Colma (San Bruno charges $125, San 
Carlos $90).  This fee would not apply if the business is required to obtain a Use Permit. 

 
• Raising the business registration fee equal to or slightly less than the cost of providing 

the service.  Staff estimates that this cost would be approximately $200, depending on 
the calculation of staff costs and overhead. 
 

• Increase the initial enforcement fee to $100 to cover staff time to carry out enforcement 
for non-payment.  
 

Staff estimates that implementation of this approach would increase Town revenues by an 
additional $25,000 to $35,000, better covering actual staff costs of the business registration 
program.  

 
Business Tax 
 
If desired, the Town could place an item on the November 2018 or a future ballot an item to 
collect a business tax either using the per employee method or the gross receipts method with 
or without a cap.  This would be in addition to a processing fee for service as described above. 
This would allow the Town to increase general fund revenue substantially. The downside of this 
approach is that it places an additional cost on businesses in the Town.  In addition, staff 
processing time would increase due to the need to certify the number of employees or gross 
receipts before collecting the fee.  
 
As shown in the table above, fees can vary considerably between jurisdictions.  Since Colma has 
many large businesses, use of a gross receipts methodology without a cap could require 
payment of tens of thousands of dollars.  San Carlos took a more moderate approach by using 
a per employee charge with a cap of $2,471.00. San Carlos uses a 3% per year fee escalator in 
their fee calculation.  
 
Staff would appreciate feedback from the City Council on cost recovery for application 
processing and the idea of a business tax to increase general fund revenue. 
 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report re: Business Registration Study Session  Page 6 of 6 

Council Adopted Values 

The study session is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it considers cost 
recovery for services provided by the Town. 

Sustainability Impact 

N/A 

Alternatives 

None 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council is encouraged to ask questions and provide direction to staff about business 
registration fees.   

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Fee schedules from various jurisdictions 



Attachment A




























	10.25.17 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Closed Session
	2. 10.05.17 Special Minutes
	3. 10.11.17 Regular Minutes
	4. Town Hall Project - Amendmen V Consulting Services for FF&E
	A. Resolution
	B. Fifth Amendment - Ratcliff
	Attachment A - Ratcliff Proposal - FF&E

	C. Ratcliff FF&E Spaceplan

	5. Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT)
	A. Town of Colma TOT Survey

	6. Business Registration Fee
	A. Business Registration Fee Schedules




